November 2, 2009

Mr. Bryce MacDonald, Manager, Logistics
GE Hitachi Nuclear Energy

3901 Castle Hayne Road

Wilmington, NC 28402

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION — EXPORT OF SPECIAL NUCLEAR MATERIAL IN
EXCESS OF LICENSE AUTHORIZATION IN VIOLATION OF TITLE 10 OF THE
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 110.5

Dear Mr. MacDonald:

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) conducted a routine inspection of the material
control and accounting (MC&A) safeguards program at your Wilmington, North Carolina, facility
on August 24-27, 2009. The purpose of this inspection was to determine whether activities
authorized by the license were conducted safely and in accordance with NRC requirements. As
part of the inspection the inspectors reviewed the licensee’s imports and exports for the MC&A
program. Nuclear material transfer reports were reviewed and the sum of transfers per specific
export license was reviewed. The inspectors determined that the licensee had exceeded the
special nuclear material (SNM) export limits on the NRC Export License XSNM03066,
Amendment No. 3 (Enclosure 1), which authorizes the export of 9,488 kilograms (kg) uranium-
235 (U-235) contained in 256,240 kg uranium in nuclear fuel assemblies to Laguna Verde 1 and
Laguna Verde 2 in Mexico, until December 31, 2009.

Specifically, in July 2008, the licensee exceeded its export limits stated within its license by
shipping SNM above the amount authorized to Laguna Verde 1. In February 2009, the licensee
again exceeded its export limits stated within its license by shipping SNM above the amount
authorized to Laguna Verde 2. Over the two years, the total amount of SNM shipped exceeded
the export license by 1,310 kg U-235 contained in 34,382 kg uranium. Contrary to the Title10 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR) 110.5, Licensing requirements, the licensee
exceeded the limits of the export license (XSNM03066, Amendment No. 3) for SNM, listed in 10
CFR 110.9, List of Nuclear Material under NRC Export licensing authority, and exported special
nuclear material to Laguna Verde 1 and 2 without a license.

Based on the results of the inspection, the NRC has determined that a violation of NRC
requirements occurred. The violation was evaluated in accordance with the NRC Enforcement
Policy included on the NRC’s Web site at www.nrc.gov; select What We Do, Enforcement, and
then Enforcement Policy. The violation is being cited in the enclosed Notice of Violation
(Notice) (Enclosure 2) because it was identified as a result of NRC inspection.

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. For your consideration and convenience, an
excerpt from the NRC Information Notice 96-28, “Suggested Guidance Relating to Development
and Implementation of Corrective Action,” is enclosed (Enclosure 3). The NRC will use your
response, in part, to determine whether further enforcement action is necessary to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements.
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In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC’s “Rules of Practice,” a copy of this letter, and
your response, will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public
Document Room or from the NRC’s document system Agency-wide Document Access and
Management System (ADAMS). ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your response should not
include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction.

Sincerely,

IRA/

Jane E. Marshall, Chief
Material Control and Accounting Branch
Fuel Facility Licensing Directorate
Division of Fuel Cycle Safety

and Safeguards
Office of Nuclear Material Safety

and Safeguards

Docket No.: 11005081
License No.: XSNMO03066/03

Enclosures: As stated

cC:
Harry Knight, GNF-A
Scott Murray, GNF-A

Beverly Hall, Section Chief

Department of Environment & Natural Resources

Division of Environmental Health Radiation Protection Section
3825 Barrett Drive

Raleigh, NC 27609-7221

National Nuclear Security Administration, Office of International Regimes and Agreements
U.S. Department of Energy

ATTN: Sean Oehlbert, Team Leader

1000 Independence Avenue, SW

Washington, D.C. 20585-1615

National Nuclear Security Administration, Office of International Regimes and Agreements
U.S. Department of Energy

ATTN: Mr. Richard S. Goorevich, Director

1000 Independence Avenue, SW

Washington, D.C. 20585-1615
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National Nuclear Security Administration, Office of International Regimes and Agreements
U.S. Department of Energy

ATTN: Ms. Jessica Norles

1000 Independence Avenue, SW

Washington, D.C. 20585-1615

LSS Technical Data Assessment & Teleforensics Center, DHS/CBP
Attn: Christopher Baugues, MSC Physical Scientist

12825 Worldgate Plaza, Bldg 3

Herndon, VA 20170

Office of Nuclear and Missile Technology, Bureau of Industry and Security
U.S. Department of Commerce

ATTN: Steve Clagett

14w Street & Penn Avenue, NW, Room 2631

Washington, D.C. 20230

Nuclear Materials Management Safeguards System
ATTN: Peter Dessaules, Program Manager
DOE/NMMSS

1000 Independence Ave., SW

Washington, D.C. 20585-1290

Office of Nuclear Energy, Safety and Security Affairs, Room 3320 HST
Bureau of International Security and Nonproliferation

U.S. Department of State

ATTN: Robin DeLaBarre

2201 C Street, NW

Washington, D.C. 20520
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

GE Hitachi Nuclear Energy License No.: XSNMO03066
Wilmington, NC Amendment No.: 03
Docket No.: 11005081

During a Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) inspection conducted August 24-27, 2009, a
violation of NRC requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy,
the violation is listed below:

Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR) 110.5, Licensing requirements,
states: Except as provided under subpart B of this part, no person may export any
nuclear equipment or material listed in § 110.8 and § 110.9, or import any nuclear
equipment or material listed in § 110.9a, unless authorized by a general or specific
license issued under this part.

Contrary to the above, the licensee exceeded the limits of its export license
(XSNM03066, Amendment No. 3) for SNM, listed in 10 CFR 110.9, List of Nuclear
Material under NRC Export licensing authority, and exported SNM to Laguna Verde 1
and 2 without a license.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VII).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, GE Hitachi Nuclear Energy, is hereby required to
submit a written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN:
Document Control Desk, Washington, DC 20555, with a copy to the Regional Administrator,
Region Il; and to the Chief, Material Control and Accounting Branch, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this
Notice of Violation (Notice). This response should be clearly marked as a “Reply to Notice of
Violation” and should include for each violation: (1) the reason for the violation or, if contested,
the basis for disputing the violation or severity level, (2) the corrective steps that have been
taken and the results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further
violations, and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. Your response may
reference or include previous docketed correspondence, if the correspondence adequately
addresses the required response. If an adequate reply is not received within the time specified
in this Notice, an order or a Demand for Information may be issued as to why the license should
not be modified, suspended, or revoked, or why such other action as may be proper should not
be taken. Where good cause is shown, consideration will be given to extending the response
time.

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555-0001.

Because your response will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC
Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS). ADAMS accessible
from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html, to the extent possible, it
should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be
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made available to the public without redaction. If personal privacy or proprietary information is
necessary to provide an acceptable response, then please provide a bracketed copy of your
response that identifies the information that should be protected and a redacted copy of your
response that deletes such information. If you request withholding of such material, you must
specifically identify the portions of your response that you seek to have withheld and provide in
detail the bases for your claim of withholding (e.g., explain why the disclosure of information will
create an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or provide information required by 10 CFR
2.390(b) to support a request for withholding confidential commercial or financial information). If
Safeguards Information is necessary to provide an acceptable response, please provide the
level of protection described in 10 CFR 73.21.

In accordance with 10 CFR 19.11, you may be required to post this notice within two working
days.

Dated this 2nd day of November 2009
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